has been true progress made, and we expect more progress to be made.

### CREATING JOBS

The SPEAKER pro tempore. The Chair recognizes the gentleman from North Carolina (Mr. BUTTERFIELD) for 5 minutes.

Mr. BUTTERFIELD. Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker, for recognizing me and giving me this time to speak on a very important subject.

I want to associate myself with the comments of my friend from Kentucky (Mr. YARMUTH) who spoke just a minute ago. He is absolutely correct, there is no more important discussion that we can have on this House floor than the subject of jobs, jobs, and jobs.

I was delighted yesterday to see the action of the United States Senate. The Senate passed, by a majority of 62 Senators voting, to invoke cloture and to begin discussing and debating the long-awaited jobs bill. I am very pleased that the Senate is taking this matter very seriously. We are working to stimulate job growth in this country. And we must ensure that the bill puts people back to work. That is what it is all about, putting people back to work. Our bill also assists the unemployed and struggling who are trying to make ends meet with their family. So the vote of the Senate yesterday was quite encouraging, and I want to commend our colleagues in the other body for doing so.

Mr. Speaker, one of the advantages that we had in being snowed out of Washington for the last 2½ weeks was that we had an opportunity to go back to our districts and to visit the various counties and to talk with people who are suffering from job loss. And it is profound. In December, the House passed a strong jobs bill that included provisions that extended unemployment insurance benefits. That is very important. We also voted to extend COBRA health benefits.

We must work in a bipartisan manner, Mr. Speaker, to make sure that this critical safety net stays in place. We can do it, Mr. Speaker. We can do it if we put our hands to the plow, work together as Democrats and Republicans. We can do it. The American people are expecting us to do it.

Mr. Speaker, as you know, I represent North Carolina, the eastern part of our State, 23 counties. Nineteen of the 23 counties that I represent are suffering unemployment rates above 10 percent, including Edgecombe County, which has the State's second highest unemployment rate, at 16.7 percent. That is one out of eight citizens who are unemployed. North Carolina is suffering its highest rate of unemployment. Mr. Speaker, in 34 years.

Thousands of North Carolinians are facing the prospect of losing their unemployment benefits over the next 60 days. Across our great country, about 2.7 million jobless people will lose their benefits by the end of April unless we act. We must act.

People are facing similar dim prospects with COBRA. North Carolina's already record high number of people without health insurance is expected to continue to surge when the subsidies for the Federal Government's COBRA coverage expires, putting yet another strain on our health care system.

Mr. Speaker, thank you for this time. I urge swift and strong action on a jobs bill that puts people back to work and helps those people who are most in need. Not only do we need tax cuts for small businesses. We say that all the time. Yes, we need tax cuts for small businesses. But we also need jobs for the chronically unemployed, and we need it now.

### RECESS

The SPEAKER pro tempore. Pursuant to clause 12(a) of rule I, the Chair declares the House in recess until noon today.

Accordingly (at 10 o'clock and 51 minutes a.m.), the House stood in recess until noon.

### □ 1200

### AFTER RECESS

The recess having expired, the House was called to order by the Speaker protempore (Mr. Blumenauer) at noon.

### PRAYER

Reverend Dr. Alan Keiran, Office of the United States Senate Chaplain, offered the following prayer:

Lord God, we extol Your great name, for You alone deserve our worship and unwavering allegiance. We thank You for the gifts of meaningful labor, loving families and freedom to worship. We thank You as well for Your ultimate sacrifice which brings us hope for bright tomorrows.

Father, we humbly commend to Your abiding care those among us who are facing the challenges of age, health, and the loss of loved ones. May Your presence illumine the hearts of all who seek to bring You glory and long for Your loving presence.

We pray as well that You will empower our legislators and their staffs with the wisdom and tenacity needed to solve seemingly intractable issues facing our country and our world. Give them the strength to endure long hours of labor with a positive sense of accomplishment.

Finally, we pray for all those in harm's way and their families. May You watch over them and protect them with Your abiding presence. In Your mighty name, I pray. Amen.

# THE JOURNAL

The SPEAKER pro tempore. The Chair has examined the Journal of the last day's proceedings and announces to the House his approval thereof.

Pursuant to clause 1, rule I, the Journal stands approved.

### PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The SPEAKER pro tempore. Will the gentleman from California (Mr. DANIEL E. LUNGREN) come forward and lead the House in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mr. DANIEL E. LUNGREN of California led the Pledge of Allegiance as follows:

I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it stands, one nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

### MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

A message from the Senate by Ms. Curtis, one of its clerks, announced that the Senate has passed without amendment a bill of the House of the following title:

H.R. 4532. An act to provide for permanent extension of the attorney fee withholding procedures under title II of the Social Security Act to title XVI of such Act, and to provide for permanent extension of such procedures under titles II and XVI of such Act to qualified non-attorney representatives.

# RESIGNATION AS MEMBER OF COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE

The SPEAKER pro tempore laid before the House the following resignation as a member of the Committee on Energy and Commerce:

FEBRUARY 23, 2010.

Hon. NANCY PELOSI,

Speaker of the House, House of Representatives, The Capitol, Washington, DC.

DEAR SPEAKER PELOSI: This letter serves as my intent to resign from the Committee on Energy and Commerce, effective today. Sincerely.

GREG WALDEN,
Member of Congress.

The SPEAKER pro tempore. Without objection, the resignation is accepted. There was no objection.

# ELECTING A MINORITY MEMBER TO A STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. PENCE. Mr. Speaker, by direction of the Republican Conference, I send to the desk a privileged resolution and ask for its immediate consideration.

The Clerk read the resolution, as follows:

### H. RES. 1095

Resolved, That the following Member be, and he is hereby, elected to the following standing committee:

COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE: Mr. Griffith.

The resolution was agreed to.

A motion to reconsider was laid on the table.

# HEALTH CARE RELIEF IS NEEDED

(Mr. COURTNEY asked and was given permission to address the House for 1 minute and to revise and extend his remarks.)

Mr. COURTNEY. Mr. Speaker, last Friday, the U.S. Department of Labor

issued its updated numbers regarding inflation, and what it showed was some good news: that in fact prices were flat; they fell 0.1 percent. Producer prices the day before was reported only went up 1.2 percent.

But not every sector of the U.S. economy is so lucky. If you are a self-employed individual, if you are a small business, the Department of Health and Human Services issued another report that showed that health insurance premium costs are going up at a frightening rate: in the State of Connecticut, where I come from, a 21 percent increase; in California, 35 percent.

Across the country we are still seeing a broken health insurance marketplace that lands the hardest on the self-employed and the individuals who are trying to go out and get coverage for themselves and their families.

We need reform which will spread coverage, create large purchasing pools, and give Americans the same benefit that every Member of Congress has who participates in the Federal employee health plan.

This Thursday we have a summit where both parties need to come together and give people the same relief that Members of Congress receive every day through their health insurance plan.

### WHERE ARE THE JOBS?

(Mr. BOEHNER asked and was given permission to address the House for 1 minute.)

Mr. BOEHNER. Mr. Speaker and my colleagues, when I travel around my district, I run into a lot of people who are looking for work, hanging on by their fingertips, and they want to know, When's Washington going to wake up? They're asking, Where are the jobs?

I have run a small business, and one of the things a small business needs in order to grow is they need some certainty, certainty about what the future is going to look like. With all of this talk about raising taxes here in Washington, D.C., imposing mandates on employers in the health care bill or a new national energy tax, all they're doing is creating more uncertainty that is causing employers to be frozen in their job creation.

The Congressional Budget Office has made clear that the mandate that was in the Senate- and House-passed bills, the Senate bill, \$750 per person for an employer who doesn't offer health care to their employees, each employer may have to pay that fee. Now what we see is the President offering that that penalty should be \$2,000 per employee. This is going to raise the cost of employment and, according to the Congressional Budget Office, costs tens of thousands of jobs across our country.

It's time to scrap this bill, to get back to commonsense ideas that will help improve the cost of health care in America and widen access and bring some certainty to employers across this country who want to hire more people but won't with all of the uncertainty that is out there.

# HEALTH CARE

(Ms. WATSON asked and was given permission to address the House for 1 minute.)

Ms. WATSON. Mr. Speaker, I rise today to speak to you about health care reform. This past month, Anthem Blue Cross in California decided to raise their insurance premiums by 39 percent. This is simply unacceptable. My constituents cannot be expected to swallow this price while they struggle to keep food on the table.

I have long been a supporter of comprehensive health care reform because of the unfairness and inadequacy of our current health care system. I applaud the President's leadership in convening this week's health care summit. Though health care reform continues to be a long and arduous process, the American people cannot wait any longer. We must come to a compromise and pass a health care reform bill that will cover as many people as possible with coverage that is affordable. We must prohibit discriminatory practices such as pre-existing conditions and do away with unfair practices such as caps on coverage. Any reform bill must also control costs so that everyone can afford to get the treatment they need. Let's do what is right.

### WHERE ARE THE JOBS?

(Mr. PENCE asked and was given permission to address the House for 1 minute and to revise and extend his remarks.)

Mr. PENCE. Mr. Speaker, it's been 1 year since the Democrats passed their so-called stimulus bill, and 1 year later, one thing is clear: the stimulus bill has failed. This has even been tacitly acknowledged by the leadership of the Democratic Party here in Congress and at the White House.

We were told before the State of the Union address that the President and House Democrats were going to "pivot to an emphasis on fiscal discipline and jobs." But as the American people are struggling, with unemployment about 10 percent and an estimated 14.8 million Americans looking for work, Americans are asking, Where is the pivot, and more importantly, Where are the jobs?

After a year of borrowing and spending and bailouts and takeovers, met this week by the latest version of a government takeover of health care, millions of Americans are asking, When will Washington get the message? When will Washington, D.C., from this well to the White House itself, start to put Americans back to work with the time-honored principles of fiscal discipline in Washington, D.C., and across-the-board fast-acting tax relief for working families, small businesses, and family farms?

Let's put the emphasis on jobs, Mr. Speaker.

### CARD ACT

(Mr. KLEIN of Florida asked and was given permission to address the House for 1 minute and to revise and extend his remarks.)

Mr. KLEIN of Florida. Mr. Speaker, on Monday, we saw a tough new law go into effect. The CARD Act cracks down on the abusive practices of some credit card companies and contains strict protections for consumers long overdue, including banning unfair interest rate increases and outlawing abusive fees and penalties by credit card companies.

Putting this law into effect marks a new day for consumers and families in my district in south Florida. We finally have put in place some commonsense provisions to ensure that hardworking people aren't unfairly taken advantage of by credit card companies.

Too many of us have seen the tricks used by credit card companies—whether it is changing the date the bill is due or doubling or tripling the interest rates with no notice at all. I am glad to say those days are long gone.

This bill lives up to its name as a true Credit Card Holders' Bill of Rights. I look forward to working with my constituents to continue to make sure that we put the needs of local consumers first.

# NEW HEALTH CARE BILL IS A MIDDLE CLASS TAX HIKE

(Ms. FOXX asked and was given permission to address the House for 1 minute.)

Ms. FOXX. Mr. Speaker, the White House has a new health care bill, but this new bill is essentially the same as the old one. It is still a hugely expensive package full of harmful tax increases for working Americans that will destroy even more jobs than Democratic policies have already destroyed.

During his campaign, the President said, "Under my plan, no family making less than \$250,000 a year will see any form of tax increase; not your income tax, not your payroll tax, not your capital gains tax, not any of your taxes."

That's interesting because this new health care bill includes about \$136 billion in new taxes on the very group that wasn't supposed to see "any form of tax increase."

Mr. Speaker, the American people don't want a government takeover of health care with billions of new taxes on hardworking Americans who are struggling to make ends meet.

# SUCCESS FOR SECOND AMENDMENT RIGHTS

(Mrs. KIRKPATRICK of Arizona asked and was given permission to address the House for 1 minute.)